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August 21, 2014 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 8 
IFB NO. Y14-748 PH 

ORANGE COUNTY EASTERN WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
PHASE V AND CENTRIFUGE DEWATERING IMPROVEMENTS 

 
BID OPENING: August 28, 2014 at 2:00 PM 

 
This addendum is hereby incorporated into the bid documents of the project referenced 
above. The following items are clarifications, corrections, additions, deletions and/or 
revisions to and shall take precedence over the original documents. Additions are 
indicated by underlining, deletions are indicated by strikethrough. 
 
This is the Final Addendum in response to those Bidder questions received through 
August 18, 2014 in accordance with Part C.2.j, Instructions to Bidders.   
 
The bid opening remains August 28, 2014 at 2:00 P.M. 
 
A. FRONT END DOCUMENT CHANGES  
 
 Please use the revised bid form labeled revised D-3 and revised D-4, located in 

Addendum 6 ,pages 62 and 63. Failure to use the Addendum 6 revised Bid 
Form will result in your bid being found non-responsive and ineligible for 
further consideration. 

 
B. SPECIFICATIONS 
 

1. Replace Bid Package A, Section 11281, Fabricated Stainless Steel Slide Gates  

 
C. DRAWINGS 
 
Bid Package A (Phase V Improvements): 

No. Sheet No. Sheet Title Comments 

4 G-004 General Notes, Location Map and Flow 
Stream Identification  Reference Drawing Note 2 

21 C-109 Demolition Plan  Reference Drawing Note 6 

25 C-113 Demolition Plan  Reference Drawing Note 6 

29 C-117 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 
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30 C-118 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

31 C-119 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

32 C-120 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

33 C-121 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

34 C-122 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

35 C-123 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

36 C-124 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

37 C-125 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

38 C-126 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

39 C-127 Yard Piping Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

43 C-131 Paving Grading and Drainage Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

47 C-135 Paving Grading and Drainage Plan Reference Drawing Note 6 

51 C-139 North Ribs - Plan 1 Reference Drawing Notes 1, 7, 8 

52 C-140 North Ribs - Plan 2 Reference Drawing Notes 1, 3, 7, 8 

53 C-141 South Ribs - Plan 1 Reference Drawing Note 1 

54 C-142 South Ribs - Plan 2 Reference Drawing Note 1 

62 C-505 Civil Details  Reference Drawing Note 7 

65 C-508 Civil Details Reference Drawing Note 1 

68 C-511 Civil Details  Reference Drawing Note 5 

278 D-565-101 SE Reject Outfall & Intake Structure 
Plan Reference Drawing Note 9 

279 D-565-301 SE Reject Outfall & Intake Structure 
Section Reference Drawing Note 9 

283 D-580-301 Chlorine Contact Tank Sections Reference Drawing Note 9 

284 D-580-302 Chlorine Contact Tank Sections Reference Drawing Note 9 

286 D-502 Process Details Reference Drawing Note 4 

 
Bid Package B (Centrifuge Dewatering Improvements): 

No. Sheet No. Sheet Title Comments 

2 G-002  Index of Drawings and General Notes  Reference Drawing Note 2 
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Drawing Notes:  
 

1. Reference Bidder Question No. 28  
2. Reference Bidder Question No. 46  
3. Reference Bidder Question No. 1  
4. Reference Bidder Question No. 12  
5. Reference Bidder Question No. 14  
6. Reference Bidder Question No. 16  
7. Reference Bidder Question No. 19  
8. Reference Bidder Question No. 13  
9. Reference Additional Information No. 1  

 
D. BIDDER QUESTIONS 

1. In reference to Bid Package A, please see the questions below from a 
potential supplier/vendor for the geocomposite product noted on revised 
Drawing C-140, Detail A as issued in Addendum 6. 

a. The noted material GSE HyperNet Geonet is not a geocomposite. A 
geocomposite will have either one layer of geotextile bonded to one side 
of the geonet material to form a single-sided geocomposite, or a layer of 
geotextile bonded to each side of the geonet to form a double-sided 
geocomposite. Please clarify if the geosynthetic material is to be a 
geocomposite or a geonet? 

Please reference Drawing C-140, Section A with the following revision; 
SEE NOTE 11. GEOCOMPOSITE MATERIAL, 250 MIL GSE HYPERNET 
GEONET, OR EQUAL SEE NOTE 11. 200 MIL GEONETCORE X 
6OZ/YD^2 NONWOVEN GEOTEXTILE GEOCOMPOSITE, GSE 
BIODRAIN LP, OR EQUAL (Attachment) 

b. Also, an 8 oz/sy nonwoven fabric would be geotextile, not geogrid. The 
continued reference to geogrid is confusing and misleading. Please clarify 
if the geosynthetic material above the PVC liner is to be geotextile or 
geogrid? 

Please reference Drawing C-140, Section A with the following revision; 
SEE NOTE 11. 8 OZ NON-WOVEN GEOGRID FABRIC, TYPAR 3801, 
OR EQUAL SEE NOTE 11. MIN 32 OZ/YD^2 NONWOVEN 
GEOTEXTILE, GSE NW32, OR EQUAL (Attachment) 
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c. Concerning Notes 5 and 11 on revised C-140, these specifications are 
usually done by the design engineer before it is put out to bid, it is going to 
be very difficult for the owner to get similar bids if left up to the submittal 
process after award of the project, and could cause significant delay and 
unnecessary cost to the project. 

Noted.   

2. Reference Addendum #4, the answer to bidder question 136 regarding 
MicroC2000, the second and third sentences that state the following: 

“Following issuance of BNR substantial completion “A” (Process 520  and 
Phase I/II BNR Process Train (South)), as noted in Section 01040, Part 
D.1.i(1), and all BNRs (noted herein), the Contractor is required to fill all 
storage tanks with in Process 520 to capacity, 520-TK-1 and 520-TK-2.” 

and 

“Following the issuance of BNR Substantial Completions “A” through “E” as 
noted in Section 01040, the Owner will supply the MicroC2000 product for 
operating BNR process trains.” 

To paraphrase this answer, the Contractor will be required to provide the 
MicroC product as follows: 

• Supply for Startup and System Testing for : 

a. Process 520 

b. Phase I/II BNR (North & South) 

c. Phase III BNR 

d. Phase IV BNR 

• Complete fill of the Process 520 (Tanks 520-TK-1 and 520-TK-2) after 
Substantial Completion A-South 

Please confirm. 

Please reference Bid Package A, Specification Section 01040 Part D.1.i.(1) 
and Figures 1 and 2 illustrating the various BNR Substantial Completions; 
which are as follows: 

(a) BNR Part A1 – Process 520 
(b) BNR Part A2 - Phase I/II BNR Process Train (South). 
(c) BNR Part B - Phase I/II BNR Process Train (North). 
(d) BNR Part C - Phase III BNR Process Train (North) 
(e) BNR Part D - Phase III BNR Process Train (South) 
(f) BNR Part E - Phase IV BNR Process Train 
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The Bidder is correct in that the tanks 520-T-1 and 520-T-2 are to be filled 
after BNR substantial completion “A” as noted in the response to Addendum 
4, Bidder Question 136. These BNR substantial completions are also listed in 
Part 1.A.5.a of Section 01664. The Bidder’s Question doesn’t make mention 
that Phase III BNR is separated into two substantial completions, Parts C 
(North) and Part D (South), which are required.        

3. In reference to Bid Package A, Specification Section 01664, System Start-Up 
and Testing, Part 2.F, for Temporary Pumping and Piping Facilities for BNR 
and Secondary Clarifier Treatment, subsection’s 2 and 3 regarding the 
System Start-up test.     

a. Subsection 2.F.2 states that the tanks are filled with reclaimed water, and 
then recirculated with-in the processes at the prescribed flow rates.  Can 
this re-circulation take place using plant equipment? Or must the 
contractor provide external pumping to create the recirculation.  If the 
contractor must furnish external pumping to create the re-circulation (after 
filling) then please address the following:  

As noted in Parts 3.C and 3.D, the BNRs are to be operated with 
reclaimed water within the Preliminary Matters and Start-Up System 
Testing System phases. For the Return Activated Sludge (RAS) and 
Internal Recycle (IR) flows, the Contractor is to utilize both the existing 
pumps and the new pumps that are part of the Work. For example in the 
Phase I/II BNRs, the IR Pumps are existing which would be operated in 
simulated operation and the RAS pumps are new and would be operated 
at their design flow rates in simulated operation. Temporary pumps are 
required to simulate the Raw Sewage influent at the respective flow rates 
illustrated for each the different BNRs. Drawings G-00 through G-011 
illustrate the various flow rates for Raw Sewage, IR and RAS for each 
BNR. The flow would be recirculated either from the clarifier effluent drop 
boxes or reaeration channels to the fermentation basins, or as dependent 
upon the respective BNR in question. The simulation of the raw sewage 
flow is the volume of flow to be recirculated during the 48 hour Start-Up 
System Testing Phase described in Part 3.D. Once Start-Up System 
Testing is complete and the tanks are drained of reclaimed water, seeding 
the BNR may be initiated as described in Part 2.F.4.The seeding phase 
will require recirculation until the BNR is ready for System Testing Phase 
as described in Part 3.D.The responsibility for the Means and Methods to 
produce the respective system testing requirements in 01664 is to be 
developed and submitted by the Contractor in accordance with Part 1.B.               
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b. What is meant by recirculated?  Once the tanks are full, does additional 
reclaimed water enter via the fermentation basin at prescribed rates and 
then is circulated through the system (i.e. discharges via the chlorine 
contact tank) or after the tanks are filled with reclaimed water, is the 
reclaimed water pumped back to the fermentation basin (at prescribed 
rates) simulating flow? 

What are the recirculation points (i.e. chlorine contact tank back to 
Fermentation Basin, etc.): 

Please reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 3.a. 
regarding the intent of the recirculation and the points for recirculation.  
The points of recirculation varies respective to the multiple BNRs, albeit it 
is within the BNR series of Work, therefore not from the Chlorine Contact 
process back to the Fermentation Process, just the furthest downstream 
process involved in the Work. For instance in Phases I/II &IV there are 
secondary clarifiers included in the Work, so the recirculation of simulated 
Raw Sewage would be from the secondary clarifiers. For the Phase III 
BNRs the flow would be from the Process 330 reaeration channels to the 
Fermentation Basins.  

c. Subsection 3 states, following acceptance of the of the system start up 
test the reclaimed water will be pumped out of the Structures by the 
Contractor to either Process 395 or 495 in plant lift station. 

Can this pumping be done using in-plant equipment or is external pumping 
required. 

Please reference the responses in Addendum 7, Bidder Questions 11 and 
12 regarding the use of existing plant drain system to drain the reclaimed 
water volume from the tanks. Other than Process 495 and 395 lift stations, 
there is no existing in-plant equipment to be utilized to return the volume 
of reclaimed water out of the BNRs back to the Phase III Preliminary 
Treatment Structure (Process 300).Therefore it was included in the Work 
that the Contractor is responsible to pump out the reclaimed water prior to 
initiating the seeding process.   

4. Upon review of Addendum 6, Bidder Question 142 in reference to Bid 
Package B, refers to Section 16800 Part 1.C.  Where in 8 (eight) cameras are 
required in the EWRF building? 

Please reference Specification Section 16800, Drawings E-110, E-650-104, 
E-650-105 and I-207 for requirements regarding surveillance system 
equipment to be installed in the Centrifuge Dewatering Building.  
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5. We have the following questions regarding the Hydro International Inc. Grit 
Removal System, dated November 4, 2013, and included in Appendix C: 

Attachment C is an Attachment to the Contract Documents for purposes of 
reference. It is not part of the Contract Documents. Please reference 
Specification Section 01025-8, Part D.2 regarding the description of what is 
included in Base Bid Item No. 1.1, described as Base Bid Item 2A (Hydro- 
International Inc. Grit Removal System) in Specification Section 01025, 
versus Base Bid Item 1.0 (Phase V Improvements). The following responses 
are provided for informational purpose only as questions are in reference to 
an Attachment.     

a. Please confirm that the current set of bid documents are consistent with 
and have not changed any conditions  from the plan set dated October 17, 
2013 upon Hydro International based their pricing for the single sourced 
 grit removal equipment. 

No revisions have been made to the Contract Documents by Addendum 
believed to impact the Hydro-Internal equipment.   

b. Please confirm that the pricing included in the specifications (which is 
noted to have expired on 6/30/14) will be held firm by Hydro International 
for the full duration that the contractor is required to hold firm their bids 
firm for the date proposals are submitted to the Owner. 

Please see Addendum 1 for the revised Attachment C which expires on 
December 31, 2014.  

c. Please confirm that the conditions identified in this quote relating to Flow 
Rates, Solids Content and Head Loss and the resulting grit removal rates 
are acceptable to the Owner.   

The information as described within the Attachment C is acceptable to 
Orange County Utilities.    

d. Has Hydro International submitted a price for the 2 year extended 
warranty alternate?  If so, please provide.  If this has not been provided, 
please confirm whether or not it is required to be included in this alternate. 

The Warranty noted in Attachment C is for the Base Bid which is 3-years 
as specified in Specification Section 11320-19, Part 3.E.  Specification 
Section 11320-19, Part 3.F also includes a 2-year Additive Warranty. 
Reference Specification Section 01025, Part D.2 which states the 
following; The manufacturer’s additive 2-year warranty shall be included 
within the Additive Bid Item No.1A (Additive Equipment Warranty).  
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e. Please confirm that the Owner has agreed to and will honor the payment 
terms indicated in Hydro Internationals Standard and Special Conditions 
which form a part of the their proposal.  Please note that these payment 
terms vary from those identified in the Owner contract. 

The inclusion of Attachment C is for informational purposes only pertaining 
to advertisement. This equipment is not Owner Furnished Equipment that 
is turned over to the General Contractor. The Contractor is responsible to 
purchase the equipment and install it in conformance with the Contract 
Documents.      

f. Reference Item 7 & 8 in Hydro Internationals Standard and Special 
Conditions.  These section states that the “goods are sold F. O. B 
manufacturing site” and that the risk of loss transfers to the buyer after 
Hydro delivers the goods to the carrier.  Has the owner carried costs for 
the necessary insurance for this equipment during delivery or is this the 
Contractor’s responsibility? 

The inclusion of Attachment C is for informational purposes only pertaining 
to advertisement. This equipment is not Owner Furnished Equipment that 
is turned over to the General Contractor. The Contractor is responsible to 
purchase the equipment and install it in conformance with the Contract 
Documents.     

g. Reference Item 16 in Hydro Internationals Standard and Special 
Conditions.  This indicates that Sales tax is excluded from this proposal.  
Is this project taxable?  If not, will an exemption certificate be provided to 
the Contractor. 

Please reference Article 24-Miscellaneous, paragraph six, which outlines 
the County policy on direct purchase of equipment. The Hydro-
International equipment is responsible to be supplied by the Contractor as 
part of the Work. It is uncertain if the County will desire to enact the direct 
purchase option for this equipment. 

h. The Hydro International quote indicates a maximum delivery time of 16 
weeks after approval of shop drawings for their equipment.  Obviously, the 
Pretreatment Facility will not be ready to accept this equipment until a 
much later date.  What was the anticipated delivery date for the equipment 
that the Owner directed Hydro International to base their pricing on?   

The inclusion of Attachment C is for informational purposes only pertaining 
to advertisement. The Hydro-International equipment is not Owner 
Furnished Equipment that is turned over to the General Contractor. The 
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Contractor is responsible to purchase the equipment and install it in 
conformance with the Contract Documents.      

i. The Hydro International Quotation does not state that O & M manuals 
have been included.  Please confirm that these are inclusive in this price. 

The inclusion of Attachment C is for informational purposes only pertaining 
to advertisement. O&M manuals are required to be provided for all 
equipment supplied on the Project as noted per Specification Section 
01300, Part D. O&Ms are not listed within the Exclusions on page 4 of 8 of 
Attachment C.       

6. Please confirm that Orange County has the web-based Project Manager 
software licenses required in Specification 01400 and that the Contractor will 
not be required to purchase these items but only provide the computer for use 
in the field offices as has been done on recently bid projects in Orange 
County. 

Orange County Utilities has the appropriate number of licenses required.   

7. In reference to Bid package A, Structure/Cleaning/ Bid Item No. 3A, we have 
the following questions regarding Bid Item #3A: 

a. Can a “BNR Train” be drained to witness the amount of cleaning, sludge 
removal, etc. that will be required to perform the work? Can this be 
available by Tuesday August 26th? 

No, the BNRs cannot be drained for visual inspection, hence the 
application of a unit priced Bid Item 1.2, described as Base Bid Item No. 
3A (Material and Debris Removal from Existing Structures) in Specification 
Section 01025.    

b. If a train cannot be drained, can the county provide a thickness of sludge 
with- in the structures that the 1,000 ton allowance was estimated? or the 
parameters that the 1,000 tons was estimated?  (Note: Removal of sludge 
is dependent on the area to be removed) 

Please reference Specification Section 01025-8, Part D.3, describing the 
Base Bid Item No. 3A (Material and Debris Removal from Existing 
Structures). The material noted as sludge in the question is this material. 
The allowance was based upon prior work at this facility and other 
similarly sized facilities.      

8. In reference to Bid Package A, Drawings C-139 and C-140, the following 
questions are regarding liner system design: 
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a. What is the purpose of the slope ventilation 

To allow gases that potentially could develop under the liner to propagate 
up to and to ventilate at the top of the berm.    

b. Confirm that the purpose of the check-valves is to relieve the hydrostatic 
pressure due to a rising ground water table and the “relieved” water can 
flow into the pond. 

When the RIBs and Reject Storage Pond were built, they were built up 
above surround grade to balance cut/fill in lieu of being excavated down. 
Therefore this area is higher than the grade in surrounding vicinity 
including the WRF process area to the west. The interior finished grade of 
the Reject Storage Pond was built up 3 feet higher than the interior 
finished grade of the surrounding RIBs. In accordance with FAC Rules, 
the RIBs and Reject Storage Pond were originally designed for a 3 foot 
operating depth and 3 feet of freeboard. A purpose of the High Water 
Check Valves is for the instance if the surrounding RIBs are overfilled 
greater than their normal 3-foot operating depth up to their top of berm. In 
the event the RIBs are overfilled to their top of berm, that adjacent water 
surface elevation equates to a water surface elevation that is 3-feet above 
the proposed finished grade of the Reject Storage Pond.    

9. In reference to Bid Package A, Specification 02665 for the Flexible PVC 
Geomembrane Liner, can you supply the following clarification’s: 

a. Through Part 1-C-3-1 Calculations for the sizing and spacing of high water 
table check valves and slope ventilation details are required. What is the 
purpose of the slope ventilation details?  

Reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 8.a. 

b. Please confirm the purpose of the check valves is to relieve the 
hydrostatic pressure due to a rising ground water table and the relieved 
water can flow into the pond.  

Correct, reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 8.b. 

c. Please confirm all information required to provide the calculations to be 
performed are in the existing Geotechnical reports and no additional 
studies or borings are required for these calculations. 

Orange County Utilities cannot confirm what is required by the Liner 
System Engineer as noted in Specification 02665-3, Part 1.C.3 to provide 
the detailed shop drawing submittal for the liner system and respective 
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appurtenances. The Geotechnical Report is an Attachment that is 
provided for informational purposes only. Attachment B is not part of the 
Contract Documents.     

10. In reference to Bid Package A, Specification Section 02665 for the Flexible 
PVC Geomembrane Liner, all shop drawings that require Contractor to 
provide a design based on underlying calculations, such as Flexible PVC 
Geomembrane Liner, please confirm that the Owner will provide and/or affirm 
the underlying assumptions upon which the calculations will be based.   

The Owner and Engineer will review the submittal in similar manner to the 
other submittals specified for the Project. Orange County Utilities cannot 
confirm that the assumptions submitted in the future, by the Liner System 
Engineer as specified in Section 02665-3, Part 1.C.3, will be affirmed.     

11. Bid Proposal sheet D-4, we noticed that Bid Proposal sheet D-4 was revised 
per addendum #1, however a new bid sheet for insertion was not 
provided. Please confirm. 

See page 62 and 63 of Addendum 6,use Revised pages D-3 and D-4 
provided in Addendum 6. 

12. Bid Package A: Comparing the Gate Schedule within Spec Section 11281 
Fabricated Stainless Steel Slide Gates with the gates defined in the Tag List, 
there are discrepancies.  These discrepancies are noted on the attached.  
Please confirm the correct size for each gate.  

In response to the Bidder’s Question, the Tag List was reviewed in 
coordination with Specification Section 11281 and the Drawings. In response 
to some discrepancies identified, Specification Section 11281 as issued in 
Addendum 7, is revised and reissued in Addendum 8. In addition to the 
revisions to the gate dimensions, the Tag List includes multiple revisions 
pertaining to other process areas revised by Addenda, e.g. the elimination of 
the Process 470 Disk Filter and Specification Section 11284. Therefore the 
Tag List will be issued with the Conformed Construction Documents with the 
revisions to the gate dimensions to coincide with Specification Section 11281 
as well as all other Addenda revisions. Bid Package A, Drawing D-502 is 
revised to clarify the dimensions illustrated within the Specification Section 
11281 in coordination with the Drawings. Specification Section 11281 and the 
Drawing D-502 should be utilized and not the Tag List issued in the Bid Set. 
(Attachment)         
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13. Bid Package A: Detail 4 on sheet C-510 references Section 02665 for spacing 
and locations of PVC pipe boots and check valves. However, I was unable to 
find this information in Section 02665. Please provide information regarding 
the location, quantity, and spacing of the PVC pipe boots and check valves. 

Drawings C-139 and C-140 illustrate the High Water Table Check Valves 
within the Reject Storage Pond approximately 500’ on center each way. 
Please reference Notes on Drawings C-139 and C-140 and Specification 
Section 02665 regarding the responsibilities of the Liner System Engineer to 
prepare the submittal providing the specific number and location of High 
Water Check Valves. (Attachment) 

14. Bid Package A: Detail 1 on sheet C-511 references Section 02665 for spacing 
and locations of the Sch. 40 PVC vents. However, I was unable to find this 
information in Section 02665. Please provide information regarding the 
location, quantity, and spacing of the vents. 

The Slope Ventilation Detail on Drawing C-511/Detail 1 is revised to note in 
the perspective view of the detail to include an interval for the vertical vents to 
be placed at 250’ on center around the perimeter of the Reject Storage Pond. 
Please reference Note3 on the revised and Specification Section 02665 
regarding the responsibilities of the Liner System Engineer to prepare the 
submittal providing the specific number and location of vents. Note 3 is 
revised as follows; REFERENCE SECTION 02665 FOR THE CRITERIA TO 
DEFINE SPACING AND LOCATION OF VENTS SPACING TO BE 
SPECIFIED BY LINER SYSTEM ENGINEER PER SECTION 02665 
(Attachment) 

15. Bid Package A: What will be the perimeter of the equipment storage lots 
called out in Note 4 of Detail 7 on sheet C-502? This is needed to determine 
the cost of the new concrete mow strip. 

The two equipment storage lots totaling 24,500 SF annotated in Note 4 within 
Detail 7/C-502 are assumed to be square, therefore each will have a 
perimeter of approximately 445 lineal feet.    

16. Bid Package A: Drawing C-113 shows a portion of the asphalt roadway to be 
removed. However, drawing C-135 appears to show a new road including a 
soil cement base and 2” of asphalt where the existing road is not demolished. 
Please clarify which areas of asphalt shall be removed and/or milled and 
which areas receive a new road and base. 

Detail 6/C-503 is to be utilized for Pavement Repair for utilities installed under 
existing roadways. This detail is to be applied as the Work is performed in 
order to provide access within the existing roadways after that section of 
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Work is completed. At a later point in the Project, the existing roadways, 
including several patched sections per Detail 6/C-503, will be milled and 
overlaid with the 1” Type S-III asphalt to the limits shown in the Paving, 
Grading and Drainage Drawings. The dark hatch within the Paving Grading 
and Drainage Drawings is for the construction of new roadways per Section 
A/C-134. The following reflect the revisions to the Drawings for clarification 
purposes.     

The demolition hatch for the existing roadways on Drawings C-109 and C-113 
is deleted. The following Note is applied to all of the Yard Piping Drawings C-
117 through C-127; UTILITIES INSTALLED WITHIN EXISTING ROADWAYS 
SHALL INCLUDE ROADWAY RESTORATION WITHIN A DURATION OF 
TIME AS DESIGNATED BY THE RPR AND DETAILS 6/C-503 AND 4/C-503. 
Drawings C-117, C-131 and C-135 are revised to eliminate the dark hatch in 
the prior areas Detail 6/C-503 was called out and hatched in the light hatch 
for the 1” S-III mill and overlay.  (Attachment)    

17. Bid Package A: Drawing A-575-501 calls out for the Electrical Building to 
receive termite treatment beneath the slab. Is this the only place termite 
control is required? 

Reference the Addendum 6, Bidder Question 133; All new buildings require 
the application of Termiticide per Specification Section 02361, which are 
those included in the Architectural discipline; Processes 155, 500, 520 & 575.  

18. Bid Package A: In Spec Section 02362, it states that the pile centers be 
drilled no closer than 20’ in a 16 hour period. The standard building code 
pertaining to this is 6 pile diameters, or 9 feet. From looking at the soil 
borings, I see no layers of soil that would allow for the interconnecting of 
piles. Since the pile spacing on the plan is roughly 12’, this specification has a 
significant impact on schedule. In addition, it may not be practical to install  
test piles in compliance with this specification as you would need a reaction 
beam in excess of 40’ to accommodate 2 reaction piles and 1 test tension 
pile.   Is this specification going to be enforced on the plan, as well as load 
test application? It may be helpful to have Nodarse & Associates weigh in on 
the discussion as there are no auger cast pile references in the soil report. 

Bid Package A, Specification 02362, Part 3, Paragraph A, Item 5 is revised as 
follows: 

5. Do not install within 16 hours of the installation of an adjacent pile 
which is within 20 10 feet unless accepted in writing by the Engineer.  
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19. Bid Package A: Drawing C-137 calls out a Modified Energy Dissipater at the 
Phase V Stormwater Pond and references Detail 10/C-505. Note 1 in this 
detail states that rip rap is to have a mean diameter of 6” and the depth is 18”. 
Note 4 in the same detail says that crushed concrete is to have a 12” 
diameter and be at a depth of 36”. Which material is required at this location, 
rip rap or crushed concrete? If rip rap is used, can it also be used in lieu of 
crushed concrete per details 1 on C-139 and 2 on C-140? 

Either rip rap, or rebar free crushed concrete, may be used. Note 4 within 
Detail 10/C-505 pertains to the larger size and depth of embankment 
armoring within the Reject Storage Pond. The other locations for Detail 10/C-
505 pertain to Note 1. Please reference revised Detail10/Drawing C-505 and 
Drawings C-139 and C-140.  (Attachment) 

20. Bid Package A: Please provide an approximate location of the two additional 
storage lots per detail 7/C-502. 

The two additional equipment storage lots will be located within 2,500 feet of 
the existing processes noted on Drawing C-101 in a location as designated by 
the Orange County RPR.   

21. Bid Package A: Referring to drawing C-114, to what depth shall the biofilters 
be excavated? 

Please reference Addendum 6, Bidder Question 50. The depth of aggregate 
within the Biofilters is 36 inches below grade.    

22. Bid Package A: Referring to drawing C-114, what material are the structures 
depicted east of the biofilters and what is their depth? These items were not 
visible during the site visit. 

It is believed that they used to be wooden ramps to access the top of 
biofilters, which is a pile of mulch approximately 4’ above grade. They are not 
underground utilities or structures.  If they were not observed during the 
Bidder’s site investigation, then they have been removed prior by Orange 
County Utilities.    
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23. For Bid Packages A and B: Are the metal building wall panels to be a 24ga R 
panel as specified in Specification Section 13121 Part 2 Section E, or are the 
metal building wall panels to be a 4” pre-insulated sandwich panel to work 
with the fiberglass sandwich panels? The fiberglass sandwich panel specified 
may not be compatible with each building manufacturer’s sandwich panel wall 
system. If the walls are to be an insulated sandwich panel system, does this 
change the roof as well? Please provide answer and directive as how to 
proceed. The two systems as currently specified do no work with each other. 

The wall panels shall be as specified in 13121 part 2.E. The fiberglass 
sandwich panels (Kalwall) shall be installed into framed openings which have 
been designed to replace structurally the coverings and frames displaced per 
specification 13121 part 1.D.7. 

24. Bid Package A: Is the Owner responsible for relocating the existing vehicles, 
equipment, and materials located in the area of the new Centrifuge 
Dewatering Building not shown on the drawings? 

Orange County will relocate all of their equipment within the existing 
equipment storage lots.    

25. Bid Package A: How many existing overflow structures are there at the RIBS? 
Which ones are to be demolished? 

The new RIB Overflow Structures per Detail 1/Drawing C-508 are 
replacement of the existing 12” RW (CMP) overflow pipes. There is an 
existing section 12” RW (CMP) and Concrete Slab, as shown in the 
Demolition Plan and Section per Detail 1/C-508, in every location where new 
RIB Overflow Structures are shown on Drawings C-139 through C-142.  

26. Bid Package A: Refer to detail 1 on C-508. It appears that the design of the 
new overflow structures will limit your access around the Reject Storage Pond 
and require vehicles to drive down, across and back up, potentially causing 
vehicles to get hung up on the concrete ramp.  Please confirm that there is no 
“bridging” of any kind (concrete, or metals) on these structures to allow for 
vehicular traffic to smoothly cross over them. 

Vehicular access is typically limited to tractors or other similarly sized 
equipment. The depth of the clear channel is to maintain the water surface 
lower than the finished surface of the concrete edge during the event of a 
high overflow, so as to not erode the embankment. There is no bridging 
required. 
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27. Bid Package A: Please provide a sectional view through the new overflow 
structures in the direction that will show the width of the channel (i.e. section 
view looking into the direction the water will flow). 

This information is shown within the plan view on Detail 1/C-508; the invert of 
the 4’ wide channel is 18” below the finished surface of the edge of concrete.  
An additional Sectional view will not be developed.      

28. Bid Package A: Per detail 1 on C-508 the new overflow structures vary in 
length. The only way to determine these lengths is to scale the structures via 
drawings C-139 thru C-142. When scaling these drawings, the width of the 
overflow structures appears to be 18’ whereas the detail on C-508 shows the 
width to be 10’. Therefore, it leads us to believe that the scaled length is 
wrong as well. Please provide length and width dimensions for each of the 
new overflow structures. 

Reference Addendum 6, Bidder Question 154 regarding the dimensions of 
the Modified RIB Overflow Structures within the Reject Storage Pond as 
illustrated on Drawings C-139 and C-140. Per Detail 1/Drawing C-508, the 
dimensions of the other RIB Overflow Structures are 10’ wide and have a 
varying length because the slopes of the existing BIBs vary per each 
respective RIB. Because of this variation, Drawings C-139 through C-142 are 
revised to include a dimension from the toe of slope to opposing toe of slope 
for each RIB Overflow Structure. The Improvement Plan on Drawing C-508 is 
revised to designate the dimension from the toe of slope to opposing toe of 
slope is “DIMENSIONED PER DRAWINGS C-139 THRU C-142”. 
(Attachment).   

29. Bid Package A: Detail A on Drawing C-140 has a call-out for sod pointing to 
the top of the 24” compacted backfill at the Reject Storage Pond. Please 
confirm that only the sloped embankment shall receive sod and not the 
flattened out sections of the RIBs. 

Please reference Addendum 6, Bidder Question 67, Drawings C-139 and C-
140 were issued in Addendum 6 which contained the following Note 10; THE 
5:1 EMBANKMENT DOWN INTO THE REJECT STORAGE POND IS TO BE 
GRASSED WITH SOD OUT 5’ FROM THE TOE OF SLOPE INTO THE 
POND.  SEED AND MULCH MAY BE USED FOR GRASSING THE POND 
BOTTOM.   
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30. By looking at the specifications we noticed that Crystalline products are 
specified for waterproofing the concrete. We believe that our Hycrete 
waterproofing add mixture is the correct application for the above mentioned 
project due to superior performance. I’m enclosing the info. for our X-1000 
Hycrete product which acts with a dual purpose of waterproofing and 
corrosion protectionWe believe that our Hycrete waterproofing add mixture is 
the correct application for the above mentioned  project due to superior 
performance. I’m enclosing the info. for our X-1000 Hycrete product which 
acts with a dual purpose of waterproofing and corrosion protection.  

Please reference Addendum 6, Bidder Question 171, which revised 
Specification Section 03300-14, Part 2.01.G.8.b as follows; Acceptable 
admixture is Xypex Admix C-1000 manufactured by Xypex Chemical 
Corporation, 13731 Mayfield Place, Richmond, B.C., or equal. Please 
reference Addendum No. 1, Bidder Question 4 regarding Orange County’s 
policy of naming additional manufacturers during Advertisement.  Following 
the Notice of Award and during shop drawing submittal phase, alternative 
manufacturers will be considered on an “or equal” basis to those specified. 

31. Reference Bid Package A Specification Section 09900. Regarding the coating 
system for the submerged concrete with raw sewage - the plans call for 3 
optional systems; Tnemec, Green Monster and Raven.  The specs state 
those systems as well as Sherwin Williams.  We would prefer to use the S.W. 
system as the system is less expensive without sacrificing quality and 
specifications. Please confirm that Sherwin Williams is acceptable per the 
specifications. 

Specification Section 09900-12, Part 2.E.3 include System 33 which is for 
Submerged Concrete, Raw Sewage or Raw Water.  It is assumed that this is 
the System the Bidder is questioning regarding the overlap with the coating 
systems specified on Drawing S-001 for Pretreatment Structure Coatings.  
System 33 does not include the same coatings identified on Drawing S-001 
as the question denotes. Please reference the Concrete Coating Schedule in 
Specification Section 09900-31, Part 3.L.11 which designates that the 
Process 500 Preliminary Treatment Structure Interior is “System 34 (Floors) 
Reference Structural & Architectural Drawings”.  Please reference Addendum 
4, Additional Information No. 1 that revised Drawing S-500-103, Note 1 as 
follows; PROVIDE COATING ON ALL INTERIOR VERTICAL AND 
HORIZONTAL SURFACES IN CONTACT WITH WATER, SEE NOTES ON 
S-001. Drawing S-500-103 is coordinated with Drawing S-001 and the 
Concrete Coating Schedule in Specification Section 09900-31, Part 3.L.11 
regarding the Tnemec Perma-Shield, Green Monster and Raven systems for 
the interior channels of the Preliminary Treatment Structure. System 33 is not 
referenced in either the Coating Schedule or Mechanical Process Drawings 
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for the Preliminary Treatment Structure.  Alternative coating systems will not 
be considered for the interior of the Preliminary Treatment Structure in 
contact with water.        

32. Reference Bid Package A Specification Section 09900 Page 31 Concrete 
Coating Schedule. The concrete coating schedule lists several structures that 
are existing (i.e. Phase i/II BNRs etc.) 

a. At existing structures, is it a requirement to coat the entire structure, or 
only those parts of the existing structure that is impacted?  

The entire structure is to be coated as designated within the Concrete 
Coating Schedule in Specification Section 09900-31, Part 3.L.11.   

b. The concrete coating schedule has a column named process numbers. 
When it is stated that process numbers 210-230 are to be painted, does 
this mean process 210 through 230, or process numbers 210 and 230? 

Yes, in the typical convention for a hyphen is used, it means Processes 
210 through Processes 230.  

33. Specifications Section 02665.C.3: State that the final design requirements of 
the Rejects Storage Pond lining will be completed by the Liner Systems 
Engineer.  The final design will not be completed until after award of the bid.  
This includes the calculations and final design/product selection of the type of 
geocomposite, the size and spacing of the high water check valves and the 
slope ventilation details, and the final termination details of the Geosynthetic 
liner system. 

Is there any surveying information related to the geotechnical report to 
determine how the water table height is related within the Rejects Storage 
Pond? i.e. : Borings have water table height related to what elevation? 

Attachment B, the Geotechnical Engineering Report, is an Attachment to the 
Contract Documents for purposes of reference. It is not part of the Contract 
Documents. The following is for informational purposes only as the questions 
are in reference to an Attachment and not the Contract Documents. 

There was no topographic survey performed in relation to the Geotechnical 
Analysis in the Reject Storage Pond. As denoted in Section 4.10 of the 
Geotechnical Analysis, the analysis within the existing Reject Storage Pond 
was limited to determining the presence of an existing clay liner and the 
leakage testing of the pond.    
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34. Per Specifications Section 02665.1.B.4: The qualifications of the Liner 
System Engineer- “Have successfully completed at least three (3) projects 
with similar liner systems in the United States of America within the last ten 
(10) years, from the date that Bids are opened.” 

Could clarification be provided on the criteria that the Liner System Engineers 
projects have been.   

a. Do the systems have to be completely submerged or partially submerged? 

Section 02665, Part 1.B.4.(2) states “similar liner systems”. Either a 
completely submerged or partially submerged system would be 
acceptable so long as they’re reasonable in comparison to the scope of 
the current Project.   

b. Do all projects require the exact size of this project? 

No, as Section 02665, Part 1.B.4.(2) states “similar liner systems”.   

35. The survey data for the “Ground Surface” of the borings is critical to the 
design for the air release, hydrostatic uplift, and high water check valves. In 
the Nodarse Geotechnical Report, Terracon Project No. H1115424 dated 
August 8, 2012 -  Borings B-24 through B-29 appear to be drilled around the 
berms of the existing “Reject Storage Pond”. All borings data (Appendix A) 
and water table information (pg 19&20) are based upon “Depth Below Ground 
Surface”. However, no survey data was provided for Borings B1 – B23 (B-24 
B-29 not even listed) on pg 6&7 of the Report. 

Attachment B, the Geotechnical Engineering Report, is an Attachment to the 
Contract Documents for purposes of reference. It is not part of the Contract 
Documents. The following is for informational purposes only as the questions 
are in reference to an Attachment and not the Contract Documents. 

There was no topographic survey performed in relation to the Geotechnical 
Analysis in the Reject Storage Pond. As denoted in Section 4.10 of the 
Geotechnical Analysis, the analysis within the existing Reject Storage Pond 
was limited to determining the presence of an existing clay liner and the 
leakage testing of the pond.    

a. Please provide the survey data for the ground surface of all boring 
locations. 

Reference Addendum 8, Bidder Question 33.  
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b. Pg 6 & 18 – SHGWL is shown at +78 but this does not “appear” to match 
the 3 foot below ground surface statements in the Report but no survey 
data given to verify AND AB-1 to AB-6 & B1-B23 appear to indicate 0.5-
2.5 feet. 

This is a technical question with respect to the content included within an 
Attachment to the Contract Documents. Responses to technical questions 
pertinent to the Attachment will not be provided as the material is not part 
of the Contract Documents.   

c. Pg 19& 20 / Appendix A – In the boring data conducted in FEB 2012, 
initial water tables varied from 3 to 7.5 below land surface (bls). If the 
existing ground surface at the berms is EL 94 (??), and the bottom of the 
liner is at EL 86 (Exhibit A-42) then that would be a minimum of 5 feet of 
hydrostatic head ( EL 94 – 3 feet bls to SHGWL = EL 91; liner bottom at 
EL 86. 2 feet of earth may or may not be sufficient to ballast the liner 
system down. But no survey data provided.  

No survey was performed. This is a technical question with respect to the 
content included within an Attachment to the Contract Documents. 
Responses to technical questions pertinent to the Attachment will not be 
provided as the material is not part of the Contract Documents.   

36. Detail 4 Sheet C-150 indicates the base of the check valve to be a minimum 
of 4” inch above the concrete.  

a. What is the design water elevation in the pond?  

The maximum design water level in the Reject Storage Pond is elevation 
91.0.   

b. Does that design assume SHGWL is flowing into the pond? 

Reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 8.b.  

c. If the design effluent water elevation in the pond is higher that SHGWL 
then the valve closes and the liner design has to accommodate the 
hydrostatic uplift (but no survey data provided). If the valve is open, and 
SHGWL enters the pond; then the design capacity pond is potentially 
reduced, is that accounted for in the design of the pond/effluent treatment 
system process? 

Reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 8.b.  
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37. There is no UV resistance requirement or warranty life on the material (PVC 
or the non-woven). Is there a specific design exposure life on either material? 

Reference Specification 02665-6, Part 1.E regarding the warranty for the PVC 
Geomembrane Liner.   

38. Pg 19&20 show how rapidly the water levels rise in the RIB when the 
REJECT POND IS FULL (rising 2 to 6 feet in a single day). Given the Kh (25 
ft/day ) and Kv (15 ft/day) on pg 19 of the Report,  is a 250 mil Geocomposite 
sufficient? The SHGWL, loading, actual soils in the ponds will dictate spacing 
and final design.  However, the report indicated “significant leakage”; 
however, no hydraulic testing of the actual soils within pond were conducted. 
The Soil Survey Exhibit A-2 appears to show AB in soil type 3 while the pond 
is in soil type 34. Both “Fine Sands” but Type 34 has a higher potential 
permeability (Exhibit A-41). 

Is it expected that the soils within the pond be tested prior to final design? 

Reference the response to Addendum 8, Bidder Question 33 regarding the 
scope of the Geotechnical Analysis in the Reject Storage Pond. The 
Geotechnical Analysis is an Attachment to the Contract Documents. This 
question includes technical content with respect to the Attachment. 
Responses to technical questions pertinent to the Attachment will not be 
provided as the material is not part of the Contract Documents. It is expected 
that the General Contractor, and Liner System Engineer, perform the 
necessary investigations and services for the Liner System Engineer to 
perform the responsibilities noted in Specification Section 02665.   

39. Reference Bid Package A Drawing D-500-305 and D-304 Detail 9 - The 4-
GS-1 pipe running on the Pretreatment Structure Loading Area Deck is 
shown supported by Pipe Support D-304 Detail 9; however the detail is blank. 
Please provide detail or advise alternative method to support this pipe. 

Reference Addendum 6, Bidder Question 118.   

40. Reference Addendum No.6 Bidder Question No. 176 – It has been noted by 
suppliers that this is a very rare spec with a high cost and possible longer 
duration lead times. Would a thicker mil spec for factory coatings be 
acceptable in lieu of the specified sheet coating application specified in 
Section 9954? 

The application of sheet coating to buried valves is eliminated from the Work. 
Bid Packages A and B, Specification Section 09954, Part 3.C is revised as 
follows;  
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C. Applying Sheet Coating to Buried Valves 

1. Wrap flanges and other irregular surfaces with wax tape or 
moldable sealant. Press tightly into place leaving no voids 
underneath and a smooth surface under coating for 
polyethylene sheet. 

2. Wrap with a flat sheet of polyethylene. Place the sheet under 
the valve and the flanges or joints with the connecting pipe and 
fold in half. Extend the sheet to the valve stem and secure the 
sheet in place with 2-inch-wide plastic adhesive tape. Apply a 
second layer and secure with tape. Make two complete wraps, 
with no exposed edges, to provide a watertight corrosion barrier. 
Secure the sheets with tape around the valve stem below the 
operating nut and around the barrel of the connecting pipe to 
prevent the entrance of water and soil. Place concrete anchor 
and support blocks after the wrap has been installed. 

41. Figure 2 in section 01040 of Bid Package A shows a legend listing out 
Substantial D and Substantial E work.  Addendum 1 added requirements for 
Substantial C, but we have not seen anything further for D and E.  Please 
provide these additional requirements / clarifications. 

Please reference Bid Package A, Specification Section 01040 Part D.1.i.(1) 
and Figures 1 and 2 illustrating the various BNR Substantial Completions.  
Part D.1.i.(3) and Figures 1 and 2 lists the substantial completions for Tertiary 
Treatment. There is not a Substantial E for the Tertiary Treatment. The 
elimination of the relocation of the Process 470 Disk Filter from Work will not 
alter Substantial Completion Part D, per Part D.1.i.(3)(g), other than the 
Contractor is responsible to relocate the existing Pumps to accommodate that 
Work, as noted in Addendum 1, Drawing D-360-102.      

42. Bid Package A: Are there existing interior coatings on BNRs 1-4 (Phase I/II) 
and BNRs (Phase III), see table on 09900-32? If so, please provide the 
manufacturer, product name, and thickness of the existing coating(s).  

Yes. The existing Phase I/II and Phase III BNRs are coated with a coal tar 
epoxy from the top of wall to the interior finished floor of the tanks. Orange 
County Utilities does not have the product name and thickness of the existing 
coatings to provide. 

43. Bid Package A: Are there record drawings for the existing BNRs that can be 
provided for a more accurate takeoff? 

Record Drawings for the existing BNRs are not available to be provided to the 
Bidders.   
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44. Bid Package A: How do the Pretreatment Structure Coating notes found on 
drawing S-001 relate to System No. 33 described on pg. 09900-12 of the 
project specifications?  

It is not, please reference Addendum 8, Bidder Question 31.  

45. Please clarify if we are required to include flood and wind coverage in our 
builder’s risk policy.  These particular perils are listed as excluded “causes of 
loss” in Exhibit D part B.1.g.  The need to include these coverages could be 
interpreted either way, so we are asking for a clarification to eliminate any 
uncertainty and insure that all bidders include the necessary costs. 

Purchasing Question: We would require wind coverage in the builder’s risk 
policy but will waive the flood coverage. 

46. Bid Packages A & B: Per the engineer’s response to question 137 in 
Addendum No. 6, we would like to clarify that it is the engineer and owner’s 
intent for the contractors to hand dig within 7’ of existing structures. This note 
will add significant cost to this project, and likely extend the duration. There 
are multiple instances in which this note affects production within the scope of 
work. Take a moment to look at SEC Clarifiers 1-2 and 3-4, the tie in’s to the 
RAS-1 lines are 10-12’+ below grade, per note 2 on sheet S-250-101, the 
engineer is requiring sheeting and tie backs to protect this structure during the 
excavation. Is it our understanding, that we can drive sheets underneath a 
launder wall, with no clearance, within 7’ of an existing structure, but cannot 
excavate? We would ask that this note be deleted, as this is a means and 
methods decision by the contractor, as the contractor already assumes all risk 
for existing structures and processes within the scope of work. 

Noted. Orange County Utilities rational behind inserting the note is for the 
congestion in certain areas that will likely require hand excavation due to 
close proximity to existing facilities; pipeline and ductbanks. General Note 26 
on Drawing G-004 and G-002 in Bid Packages A and B respectively is revised 
as follows; 26. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO 
INCLUDE IN THE BID TO EXCAVATE BY HAND ALL AREAS. THE 
CONTRACTOR IS ADVISED THAT HAND DIGGING MAY BE THE ONLY 
METHOD AVAILABLE TO AVOID PIPELINE AND ELECTRICAL DUCTBANK 
DESTRUCTION IN MANY CONGESTED AREAS. (Attachment)   
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47. Bid Package A: We asked question 75 a. in Addendum 6, with the response 
saying that we should be compliant with Dewatering Permits. Reject water will 
not be able to be permitted for surface water discharge without treatment, 
therefore, the engineer and owner will need to give an answer regarding the 
desired discharge location into the existing plant. Please confirm that the 
Reject Pond must be pumped back into the plant for treatment, and please 
determine a location or process for discharge.   

Reference Addendum 7, Bidder Question 40, which noted the following; At 
the time in which the Contractor determines to commence work within the 
Reject Pond if there is Non-Compliant Effluent within the Reject Pond, then it 
is to be pumped to the Phase III Preliminary Treatment Facility (Process 300) 
for treatment.  

48. Bid Package A: Can the water that is currently contained in the ribs be 
transferred to existing adjacent ribs so that we can perform the modifications 
to those ribs? 

Yes, so long as Orange County Utilities EWRF Operations staff permits it at 
the time the Contractor requests to perform it by submittal of a Construction 
Administration Request (CAR) form through the RPR and that the current 
FDEP Operating Permit conditions are not violated due to the Contractor’s 
transfer of water from one RIB to another, e.g. 3-foot maximum operating 
depth per FAC Rules.    

49. During Phase IV construction the contractor pumped groundwater directly into 
the RIBS and Wetlands. The RIBS are designed to handle excess water and 
distribute it back into the ground accordingly. Please reconsider allowing the 
contractors to use the existing RIBS as a means of groundwater discharge 
during construction of the facility, so long as it meets the water quality 
standards set forth by the Permits issued by FDEP/SFWMD, and as long as 
the capacity needed by the facility is not exceeded. It will be the lowest cost 
option, and provide the least amount of environmental impact for the owner 
and the contractor.  

It is incorrect in that during the Phase IV-C Improvements that dewatering 
water was discharged into either into the RIBs or the EWRF’s man-made 
wetlands. The EWRF is in close proximity to its current rated permitted 
disposal capacity.  The EWRF is reliant upon the RIBs in cases of either 
process upset or limitations in the alternative effluent disposal locations 
available. Another matter is the current rated capacity of the RIBs and 
necessity to count on that capacity for Operational Permit compliance.  
Orange County Utilities is unable to provide the Contractor the option of the 
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RIBs for discharge of ground water dewatering operations because of these, 
and additional conditions.          

50. Bid Package A: Sheet C-124, 42”x42” Wet Tap on RS-1 Pipe. Please confirm 
that the Existing 42” RS-1 is Ductile Iron and not PCCP Pipe. Size on Size 
Taps are not available for PCCP pipe.  

There is not a 42” RS-1 tie in on Drawing C-124. Based upon the question 
presented it is unclear of the location of the tie-in in question.     

51. Bid Package A: Sheet C-121, 42”x36” Wet Tap on SE-1 Pipe. Please confirm 
that the Existing 42” SE-1 is Ductile Iron and not PCCP Pipe. It will be difficult 
to get a Tapping Sleeve for a 42”x36” on PCCP.  

The existing 42” SE at the 36X42 wet tap on Fitting 123, zone A5, is ductile 
iron.    

52. Bid Package A: Please confirm that the only Existing PCCP Pipe on this site 
that we are connecting to is the RW-1, which is being relocated for Clarifier 11 
Construction. 

The only known PCCP on the property that is proposed to have a new 
connection is the 42” RW on Drawings C-126 and C-127.   

53. Bid Package A: Spec Section 1025-4 Pay Item D.1.a.7 – Relocate Existing 
Disk Filter Needs to be Removed to Reflect that This work is No Longer 
Required.  

Bid Package A, Specification Section 01025-4, Part D.1.a.(7) is revised as 
follows: 

(7) Relocate Existing Disk Filter, Process 470. This includes all labor, 
materials, supplies and equipment for demolition and relocation of the 
existing disk filter including but not limited to valves, piping, electrical 
and controls, concrete slab, staircases and any other elements of this 
process. 

54. Bid Package A: The following questions are in regards to the System Start-Up 
and System Testing, Specification 01664. 

A special meeting to discuss System Start-Up & Testing 
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a. We are making assumptions regarding the System Start Up and System 
Testing procedures that will be required to meet specification 01664.   We 
request a System Start Up / Testing meeting with the engineer (and/or 
plant operations) prior to the bid, to review Start-up/Testing requirements, 
in order to eliminate assumptions, and provide the owner with the most 
cost efficient proposal.  We request the meeting for August 25th. 

No, Orange County Utilities is not able to meet with any Bidder during the 
advertisement process to discuss the Contract Documents.   

Questions pertaining to System Start-up 

b. Reference page 01664-8, Item E. Temporary Pumping, section 3., that 
states, “The contractor is responsible for temporary pumping systems as 
required to simulate the process performance…” 

Also Reference page 01664-9, Item F. Temporary Pumping and Piping 
Facilities for BNR and Secondary Clarifier Treatment, sub section 2. states 
“The contractor shall fill the tanks with reclaimed water and recirculate it 
within the processes at the prescribed flow rates….” 

i. In order to simulate flows in a given train, we assume we pump 
from a down-stream clarifier, up-stream to the First anoxic 
basin, in order to simulate.  The flow will gravitate back to the 
clarifier. Please confirm. (Note: If these are not the points for 
recirculation please provide them.) 

Reference Addendum 8, Bidder Question 3.  Yes, the flow from 
the Fermentation Basins will flow by gravity to the Clarifiers.   

ii. The flow rates that require simulation are indicated in the flow 
diagram tables on drawing sheets, G -007 and G-008.  Please 
confirm. 

Reference Addendum 8, Bidder Question 3.   

iii. The flow rates indicated on drawing G-007 and G-008 can be 
divided by two to simulate the tests.  For example, the average 
daily flow to Phase I/II BNR is 8 MGD.  When testing the south 
half of Phase I/II BNR, the simulated average daily rate would 
be 4 MGD. 

Correct 
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iv. Per section 01664 we are testing the south half of Phase I/II 
BNR.  However it does not appear that the fermentation piping 
to the first anoxic basin will allow this.  Please confirm that flows 
do not need to circulate through the fermentation basin.     

There is isolation capacity in the Process 210 Fermentation 
Basin. Recirculation flow is to be returned to the Fermentation 
Basin.    

c. Reference 01664-8, item B. Supplemental Carbon. Please provide the 
average amount of carbon that is estimated for treatment (gallons of 
carbon per gallons of flow) 

In May 2012, AECOM prepared Technical Memorandum: Supplemental 
Carbon Analysis and Present Worth Analysis includes the following 
estimated Supplemental Carbon Feed Rates (gpd) for the rerated 
capacities on an annual average flow (AADF) basis for the following 
BNRs; 

• Phase I/II at 8 MGD AADF: 250 gpd 
• Phase III at 9 MGD AADF: 300 gpd 
• Phase IV is being rerated upto 7 MGD. It is a Modified Step Feed 

BNR versus the others as 5 Stage Bardenpho BNRs. The TM 
determined Supplemental Carbon was not required for rerating to 
7 MGD AADF, albeit SP-1 piping will be routed to Phase IV BNR 
for additional flexibility as part of Phase V.   

Please note the Contractor is responsible to supply the MicroC2000 
product until BNR Process Substantial Completion.  The information 
provided herein is for informational purposes only as response to the 
Bidder’s question. The amount of MicroC2000 required to reach BNR 
Process Substantial Completion may vary from the information provided 
herein based on the TM.    

Questions pertaining to System Testing 

d. Reference page 01664-9, Item F. Temporary Pumping and Piping 
Facilities for BNR and Secondary Clarifier Treatment, sub section 4., 
states “During the filling and seeding period, the Contractor shall be 
responsible to provide temporary piping and pumps in order to circulate 
mixed liquor from the 2nd anoxic tanks to the fermentation tanks at varying 
rates…” Please confirm that, after pumping from the 2nd Anoxic tank to the 
Fermentation Tank, the system piping will allow flow to gravitate back 
through the system (i.e. back to the 2nd Anoxic Tank.) 

Yes, the WRF is constructed to allow flow by gravity from Fermentation to 
2nd Anoxic.   
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e. Reference page 01664-9, Item F. Temporary Pumping and Piping 
Facilities for BNR and Secondary Clarifier Treatment, sub section 5., 
states “Once seeding is completed the system will be brought into service 
for the 21 – day System Testing duration.” Also Reference page 01664-
14, 2. Specific Requirements for the Biological Nutrient Removal 
Processes…, parts b & c. 

i. Please confirm that the 21 day system testing duration is 
comprised of  

7 days First stage of data collection to demonstrate the 
removal of BOD and total suspended solids. 

7 days One week hold on testing after the first stage  
7 days Second stage of testing to demonstrate biological 

nutrient removal. 

That is partially correct, reference Specification Section 01664 
for the details not included in this summarized question.  

ii. What is the purpose for waiting the one week between stages 1 
and 2? 

Process Stabilization. 

iii. Please confirm that, during the 21 day system test, the BNR 
train will be on-line (influent will be introduced into the system, 
and contractor re-circulation is not required). 

Correct, recirculation is not required at that stage.   

iv. Please confirm that, if the effluent does not meet quality 
standards, the effluent can be recirculated through the system 
via “plant piping and controls.” 

This question is without citation to Specification Section 01664. 
Confirmation cannot be provided for such a question.      

E.   ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  

1. Reference Bid Package A. The following revisions were made to the 
Drawings: 
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a. Process 565 SE Eff Reject Outfall & Intake Structure Drawings D-565-101 
and D-565-301 – The scales for both drawings have been revised. 
(Attachment) 

b. Process 580 Chlorine Contact Tank Drawing D-580-301: The elevation of 
the top of the structure was revised to match the Structural Drawings (Bid 
Package A Drawings S-580-102 and S-580-301). (Attachment) 

c. Process 580 Chlorine Contact Tank Drawing D-580-302: The elevation of 
the top of the structure was revised to match the Structural Drawings (Bid 
Package A Drawings S-580-102 and S-580-301) and the elevation of 
existing grade was corrected. Additional changes to the Drawing were 
made regarding the elimination of the Process 470 Disk Filter relocation 
from the Contract per Addendum 1, General Information 2, including 
deletion of 24 FE-1 and associated slide gate, deletion of 18 SE-1).  
(Attachment) 

2. The Concrete Coating Schedule in Bid Package A, Specification Section 
09900-31, Part 3.L.11 is revised as follows for the Preliminary Treatment 
Structure;  

  Exterior  
Process 
Number(s) 

 
Process 
Name 

 
Below 
Grade 

 
Above Grade 

 
Interior 

500 Preliminary 
Treatment 
Structure 

N/A N/A 

Reference 
Architectural 

Drawings 

System 34 
(Floors) 
Reference 

Structural & 
Architectural 

Drawings 

 

3. Bid Packages A and B, Specification Section 09954, Part 3.A is revised as 
follows; 

B. Application of Moldable Mastic Filler to Irregular Adjacent Surfaces 

When the adjacent joints are bell-and-spigot or mechanical joints 
and any associated welding specifications do not require an 
external full fillet weld, apply a moldable mastic filler (per Section 
15050) at the step-down area prior to the application of the sheet 
encasement and tape. 
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F The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum by completing the 
applicable section in the solicitation or by completion of the 
acknowledgement information on the addendum. Either form of 
acknowledgement must be completed and returned not later than the date 
and time for receipt of the bid. 

G.  All other terms and conditions remain the same. 
 
    Receipt acknowledged by: 
 
______________________________________  _______________________  
Authorized Signature        Date Signed 
 
______________________________________  
Title 
 
______________________________________  
Name of Firm 
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SECTION 11281 FABRICATED STAINLESS STEEL SLIDE GATES 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

A. Description 

This section includes materials, installation, and testing 
of fabricated stainless steel slide and weir gates, open 
channel or wall mounted conforming to AWWA C561 and as 
supplemented herein. 

B. Submittals 

1. Submit shop drawings in accordance with the General 
Conditions, Section 01300 and the following. 

2. Submit dimensional drawings. 

3. Submit manufacturer’s catalog data and detail drawings 
showing slide gate parts and described by material of 
construction, specification (such as AISI, ASTM, SAE, or 
CDA), and grade or type. Show coatings. Identify each 
slide gate by tag number to which the catalog data and 
detail sheets pertain. 

4. Submit calculations to show that gates, stems, and lifts 
meet the specifications. 

5. Submit manufacturer's installation instructions. 

C. Manufacturer's Services 

Provide equipment manufacturer's services at the jobsite for 
the minimum labor days listed below, travel time excluded: 

1. Two (2) labor days for each service listed in the 
subsection on "Service Conditions" to check the 
installation and advise during start-up, testing, and 
adjustment of the equipment. 

2. Two (2) labor days (one (1) day for each shift) to 
instruct the County's personnel in the operation and 
maintenance of the equipment. If there are difficulties 
in operation of the equipment due to the manufacturer's 
design or fabrication, additional service shall be 
provided at no cost to the Owner. 

3. Refer to Section 01010 for additional requirements. 
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PART 2 - MATERIALS 

A. Manufacturers and Models 

1. Type 3 slide gates shall be of the self-contained 
upward-opening type with guides for embedding in 
concrete. Type 3 slide gates shall be Fontaine Series 
25, Whipps Series 921, or WACO Environmental Products 
Series 8500. 

2. Type 4 slide gates shall be of the self-contained upward 
opening type designed to mount on the face of concrete 
walls. Type 4 slide gates shall be Fontaine Series 20, 
Whipps Series 923, or WACO Environmental Products Series 
8500. 

B. Weir Gates 

Weir gates shall be of the self-contained downward-opening 
type designed to mount on the face of concrete walls. Weir 
gates shall have rising stems. Weir gates more than 5 feet 
wide shall have double stems. Design the gate to be lowered 
for opening and to be raised for closing. Gate design and 
materials of construction shall conform to the descriptions 
of slide gates. Manufacturers: Fontaine, Whipps, or WACO.  

C. Slide Gate Design 

1. Slide gates and appurtenances shall comply with AWWA 
C561, except as modified herein. 

2. Provide slide gates complete with gates, guides, frames, 
baseplates, seats, stems, stem guides, seals, actuators, 
and anchor bolts. Design slide gates for minimum seating 
and unseating heads of 10 feet. Measure the seating and 
unseating heads from the top surface of the water to the 
centerline of the disc. 

3. Under the design seating and unseating heads, the 
leakage shall not exceed 0.05 gpm per foot of wetted 
seating perimeter.  

4. Slide gates shall have rising stems. 

5. Provide offset bevel box operating system for gates 
there the centerline elevation of handwheel or crank is 
greater than 48-inches from floor elevation. Centerline 
of offset bevel box operating system crank shall be 36-
inches from floor elevation.  
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6. Provide extension for actuator to place handwheel 
interior to new guardrails where guardrail blocks access 
to actuator. 

D. Frames for Self-Contained Slide Gates 

Design frames to be suitable for bolting to concrete walls 
or for grouting into channel recesses as noted herein. 
Furnish flush inverts for wall-mounted gates and flush 
inverts for channel-mounted gates as noted herein. 

E. Guides 

1. The guides shall extend in one continuous piece from the 
gate invert to form posts for crank operated floor 
stand. The extended guides or posts shall require no 
additional reinforcing to support the operator. The 
guide frames shall be fabricated from plates and angles 
suitable for the loads imparted to it by the water head 
and operator in accordance with design guidelines and 
safety factors herein. All stainless steel frame 
components shall be a minimum of 1/4-inch thick. 

2. Provide a flush invert at the bottom of the frame. 
Provide a rubber insert to function as a seating surface 
for the gate disc. 

3. Provide rubber J-bulb seals or self-adjusting UHMWPE 
seals along the sides of the gates. 

4. Provide replaceable polyethylene bearing strips in the 
guides. Provide strips along both sides of the guide 
channels containing the disc to insure no metal to metal 
surface contact. Alternatively, mount the replaceable 
polyethylene bearing strips on the disc. 

5. Provide rubber or UHMWPE J-bulb seals or self-adjusting 
UHMWPE seals along the top of the gate for submerged 
applications. 

6. All adjustable J-bulb seals shall be secured by 
stainless steel retainer bars of the same alloy as the 
frame. 

7. Rubber J-bulb seals shall have a fluorocarbon film 
vulcanized and bonded to the sealing surface of the 
bulb. The film shall be minimum 0.060-inch thick 
Buckhorn Rubber abrasion-resistant Fluorocarbon Film No. 
4508 or equal. Test fluorocarbon film for adhesion bond 
per ASTM D 413 using either the machine method or the 
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deadweight method. There shall be no separation between 
the fluorocarbon film and the rubber when subjected to a 
load of 30 lbs per inch of width.  

F. Disc 

1. Fabricate the disc using stainless steel flat plate with 
stainless steel structural or formed members welded to 
the plate. Provide disc components with a minimum 
material thickness of 1/4-inch. 

2. The disc shall be a one-piece plate, reinforced with 
ribs so that the disc will not deflect more than 1/720 
of the gate span or 1/16-inch, whichever is less, at 
design head. Attach reinforcing ribs to disc by welding; 
do not use bolting. Reinforcing ribs shall extend into 
the guides such that they overlap the seating surface of 
the guide. Vertical reinforcing ribs can also be 
provided adjacent to the guides to ensure deflection 
remains within the specified limits. Design the disc so 
that all surfaces are free of metal-to-metal contact 
with the frames. 

G. Actuator Support Yoke for Self-Contained Slide Gates 

Attach the actuator support yoke to the extensions of the 
guides. Provide two angles bolted to opposite sides of the 
guide extensions. Mount the actuator on a plate bolted to 
the support yoke. Maximum deflection of the yoke shall not 
exceed 1/4-inch when subjected to a load induced by an 80-
pound pull on the actuator or 1/360 span when subjected to a 
load induced by a 40-pound pull on the actuator, whichever 
is less. 

H. Stems and Stem Guides 

1. Lifting stems shall be one piece, with a minimum 
diameter of 1-1/2 inches. The stem shall withstand an 
actuator effort of 80-pounds without buckling, assuming 
the critical buckling load as determined by using the 
Euler Column Formula with C = 2.0. The stem shall have a 
minimum diameter of 1-1/2 inches. The threaded portion 
shall have machine cut or machine rolled, full depth 
Acme threads, polished to a 16 microinch finish or 
better. Support the stems with stem guides such that the 
L/R ratio for the unsupported part of the stem does not 
exceed 200. 
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2. The stem connection to the disc shall be either the 
clevis type, with structural members welded to the slide 
and containing two bolts to secure the stem to the disc, 
or a threaded and bolted or keyed thrust nut supported 
in a welded nut pocket. The pocket shall be capable of 
withstanding a load of 80-pounds on the actuator. 

3. Provide tandem stems and actuators when the gate width 
is more than twice the gate height and for weir gates 5 
feet or more in width. 

I. Materials of Construction 

Materials of construction shall conform to the requirements 
listed below: 

 
Component Material Specification 

Guides Stainless 
steel 

ASTM A240 or A276, Type 
316L 

Disc, yoke Stainless 
steel 

ATSM A240 or A276, Type 
316L 

Stems, stem guides, 
bushings, pivot pin 

Stainless 
steel 

ASTM A276, Type 316 

Bolts, fasteners 
(including anchor 
bolts) 

Stainless 
steel 

ASTM A193, F593 or F594; 
Grade B8M or ASTM A276, 
Type 316 

Lift nut Bronze ASTM B62 or ASTM B584, 
Alloys C83600, C83800, 
or C86500 

J-bulb seals, flush 
bottom seals 

Rubber ASTM D2000, Grades 
BC610, BC611, BC612, 
BC613, BC614, or BC615 

Floor Stand Stainless 
steel or 
Aluminum 

ASTM A240, Type 316L; or 
Tenzaloy aluminum 

Hand Wheel Aluminum ASTM B 209 or B 308, 
Alloy 6061-T6 or 6063-T6 

J. Actuators 

1. Provide manual actuators unless otherwise indicated in 
the drawings. Where possible provide Acme threaded 
handwheel lifts without gear reduction for gates having 
design seating heads 10-feet or less. Provide a flanged 
lift nut to engage the threaded portion of the stem. 
Support the lift nut on nonmetallic thrust washers or 
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ball or roller bearings. Provide manual crank-operated 
lift with gear reduction for gates having design seating 
heads greater than 10 feet. Maximum pull required to 
open the gate shall not exceed 40-pounds. Support crank-
operated lift nuts only on ball or roller bearings. The 
crank handle shall be removable. Provide a 2-inch-square 
nut configured to allow the use of a portable electric 
actuator. 

2. Provide a graduated clear plastic stem cover to show the 
gate position in increments of 1/4-inch. Provide vent 
holes to prevent condensation. 

K. Floor Stands 

1. Design crank-operated or handwheel-operated floor stand 
hoists to permit gate operation with 40-pounds of 
maximum effort under the head conditions noted in the 
drawings. 

2. Provide floor stand hoists that can also accommodate a 
portable electric actuator. 

3. Coat cast iron floor stands per Section 09900, System 
No. 10. All stainless steel weld burn and weld slag 
shall be mechanically passivated in accordance with ASTM 
A380 to provide a uniform finish. 

L. Spare Parts 

1. Provide the following spare parts for each size of slide 
or weir gate: 

 
Quantity Description 

1 Standnut for each size 

4 Stem guides of each type and size 

1 set self-adjusting seal and  Flush 
bottom seals for each type and size 
gate 

1 Stem Covers for each type and size 
gate 

5 Tubes of Recommended Grease 

2. Pack spare parts in a wooden box; label with the 
manufacturer's name and local representative's name, 
address, and telephone number; and attach list of 
materials contained within. 
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PART 3 - EXECUTION 

A. Slide Gate Designations and Designs 

1. Provide the following stainless steel slide gates: 

Tag Type Opening 
Width 
(ft) 

Opening 
Height 
(ft) 

Bottom 
of 

Opening 
EL 

Top of 
Opening 

EL 

Deck EL 

231-SG-1 Wall Mounted 3'-0" 3'-0" 86.00 89.00 96.50 

335-SG-1 Wall Mounted 2'-6"(1) 2'-6"(1) 82.75 85.25 99.00 

336-SG-1 Wall Mounted 2’-6"(1) 2'-6"(1) 82.75 85.25 99.00 

360-SG-1 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-2 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-3 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-4 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-5 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-6 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

360-SG-7 Wall Mounted 4'-0" 4'-10" 81.00 85.83 88.00 

562-SG-1 Wall Mounted 3’-6”(1) 3’-6”(1) 74.05 77.55 95.00 

563-SG-1 Wall Mounted 3’-0”(1) 
5’-0” 

3’-0”(1) 
5’-0” 

74.82 
73.82 

77.82 
78.82 95.00 

564-SG-1 Wall Mounted 2’-6”(1) 2’-6”(1) 75.20 77.70 95.00 

564-SG-2 Wall Mounted 2’-6”(1) 2’-6”(1) 75.20 77.70 95.00 

565-SG-1 Wall Mounted 3’-6”(1) 3’-6”(1) 81.50 85.00 94.00 

500-SG-1 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-2 Wall Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-3 Wall Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-4 Wall Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 
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Tag Type Opening 
Width 
(ft) 

Opening 
Height 
(ft) 

Bottom 
of 

Opening 
EL 

Top of 
Opening 

EL 

Deck EL 

500-SG-5 Wall Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-6 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-7 Channel Mounted 5’-0” 8’-0” 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-8 Wall Mounted 5’-0” 8’-0” 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-9 Wall Mounted 5’-0” 8’-0” 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-10 Wall Mounted 5’-0” 8’-0” 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-11 Wall Mounted 5’-0” 8’-0” 102.83 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-12 Channel Mounted 5’-3” 8’-0” 102.25 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-13 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.25 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-14 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.25 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-15 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.25 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-16 Channel Mounted 5'-0" 8'-0" 102.25 112.00 112.00 

500-SG-17 Channel Mounted 5'-3" 8'-0" 102.25 112.00 112.00 

580-SG-1 Wall Mounted 4’-0”(1) 4’-0”(1) 69.62 
72.00 

73.62 
76.00 

87.00 
85.00 

580-SG-2 Wall Mounted 2’-0”(1) 2’-0”(1) 76.00 78.00 87.00 

580-SG-3 Wall Mounted 4’-0”(1) 4’-0”(1) 72.00 
69.62 

76.00 
73.62 

87.00 
85.00 

(1) Dimension corresponds to the nominal size of a pipe. 
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B. Weir Gate Designations and Designs 

1. Provide the following stainless steel weir gates: 

Tag Type Opening 
Width 
(ft) 

Opening 
Height 
(ft) 

T/Wall 
EL 

T/Weir 
Gate EL 

Deck EL 

221-WG-1 Wall Mounted 10'-6" 
10'-0" 3'-0" 93.00 94.75 96.88 

97.00 

222-WG-2 Wall Mounted 10'-6" 
10'-0" 3'-0" 93.00 94.75 96.88 

97.00 

223-WG-3 Wall Mounted 10'-6" 
10'-0" 3'-0" 92.96 93.60 

94.75 97.00 

224-WG-4 Wall Mounted 10'-6" 
10'-0" 

2'-8" 
3'-0" 93.13 93.60 

94.75 97.00 

231-WG-1 Wall Mounted 8'-0" 2'-8" 
3'-0" 92.50 93.00 96.50 

335-WG-1 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 4'-0" 95.00 95.33 
96.40 99.00 

335-WG-2 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 4'-0" 95.00 95.33 
96.40 99.00 

336-WG-1 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 4'-0" 95.00 95.33 
96.40 99.00 

336-WG-2 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 4'-0" 95.00 95.33 
96.40 99.00 

360-WG-1 Wall Mounted 8'-0" 3'-0" 85.00 86.53 88.00 

360-WG-2 Wall Mounted 8'-0" 1'-8" 85.00 86.53 88.00 

360-WG-3 Wall Mounted 8'-0" 3'-0" 85.00 86.53 88.00 

561-WG-1 Wall Mounted 8’-0” 3’-0” 82.00 85.00 95.00 

562-WG-1 Wall Mounted 9’-0” 1’-6” 86.00 87.50 95.00 

563-WG-1 Wall Mounted 9’-0” 1’-6” 
2’-0” 86.17 87.50 

88.17 95.00 

564-WG-1 Wall Mounted 7’-0” 2’-0” 86.37 88.37 95.00 

564-WG-2 Wall Mounted 7’-0” 2’-0” 86.37 88.37 95.00 

500-WG-1 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 
8'-8" 3'-0" 104.75 104.75 112.00 

500-WG-2 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 
8'-8" 3'-0" 104.75 104.75 112.00 

500-WG-3 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 
8'-8" 3'-0" 104.75 104.75 112.00 

500-WG-4 Wall Mounted 10'-0" 
8'-8" 3'-0" 104.75 104.75 112.00 
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C. Welding 

Welder qualification shall comply with AWS D1.6 Welding rod 
and electrodes shall comply with AWS A5.4.  

D. Painting and Coating 

Coat cast-iron and steel surfaces above deck level, 
including actuators and floor stands, per Section 09900, 
System No. 10. Apply prime coat at factory. Color of finish 
coat shall be provided by the OWNER. 

E. Installation 

1. Install epoxy anchors for wall mounted gates using 
templates. Epoxy anchors shall be Type 316 stainless 
steel threaded rod adhesive anchors. Epoxy adhesive 
shall comply with ASTM C881, Type IV, Grade 3, Class B 
or C. Adhesive shall be Rawl Power-Fast, Hilti HIT RE 
500, Simpson Epoxy-tie with SET epoxy, or equal. Epoxy 
anchor assemblies shall be ICBO approved. 

2. Comply with AWWA C561, paragraph 4.6. 

F. Field Testing 

1. Operate each slide gate through two complete cycles. 
Gates shall operate without sticking or binding. 

2. Determine the pulling force required to turn the 
handwheel with a torque wrench. Pulling force required 
shall be less than the limit specified. 

3. Fill channels to which the gates are attached with 
water. Measure leakage through each slide gate. Measure 
the actual field seating and unseating heads. The 
allowable leakage shall be as specified above. If the 
leakage rate is exceeded, adjust or replace the gate and 
retest until it passes. 

G. Contract Closeout 

Provide in accordance with Section 01700. 

H. Warranty 

1. The Manufacturer shall furnish a written warranty 
covering materials and workmanship for the equipment 
provided for a period of three (3) years. The warranty 
period shall begin at the date of substantial completion 
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of the respective process in which the equipment is 
installed. 

2. The manufacturer shall furnish, deliver, and install new 
parts to replace the defective parts. The manufacturer 
shall furnish all supervision, labor, equipment, and 
materials to repair or replace components which have 
failed as defined by the warranty at no cost to the 
Owner. 

3. Leakage shall be no more than that allowed by the AWWA 
C561 Standard during the guarantee period. 

4. Door (disc) shall be free of sticking or binding as 
judged by the Engineer (move freely via operator 
provided) with no exercising required. Gate operators 
are to be warranted by the operator manufacturer. 

I. Additive Warranty 

Reference Specification Section 01025 for two (2) years in 
additional warranty duration to warranty stated above. 

J. Certification 

Provide a written certification from the equipment 
manufacturer that the equipment has been properly installed 
according to the plans, specifications and manufacturer’s 
specifications, and that the equipment is operating 
normally. Make all necessary corrections and adjustments at 
no additional cost to the Owner. 

END OF SECTION 
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